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FINANCIAL CONDITION

ROSS COUNTY

FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-
Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA through
Program Title: Number Grant Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services:
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Cluster:
SNAP-Food Stamp Refunds 10.551 G-1011-11-5180 5,823
FSET/FAET 10.561 G-1011-11-5180 33,541
Food Assistance State Administration Matching Grant 10.561 G-1011-11-5180 481,334
ARRA - State Administration Matching Grants 10.561 G-1011-11-5180 43,281
Total Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Cluster 563,979
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 563,979
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed through the Ohio Department of Development:
Community Development Block Grants/States Program 14.228 B-F-07-066-1 6,136
Community Development Block Grants/States Program 14.228 B-F-08-066-1 181,000
Community Development Block Grants/States Program 14.228 B-Z-08-066-1 144,185
Community Development Block Grants/States Program (CHIP) 14.228 B-C-08-066-1 12,966
Total Community Development Block Grants/State and CHIP 344,287
Home Investment Partnerships Program (CHIP) 14.239 B-C-06-066-2 39,374
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 383,661
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passed through the Ohio Office of the Attorney General:
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2008-VAGENE279T 44,654
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2008-SAGENE279T 5,277
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2009-VAGENE279T 13,749
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2009-SAGENE279T 908
Total Crime Victim Assistance 64,588
Passed through the Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program -
U.S. 23 Major Crimes Task Force 16.579 2008-JG-A01-6494 51,938
ARRA- Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - 16.579 2009-RA-AOL-2064
U.S. 23 Major Crimes Task Force : Bl 16,674
Total Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 68,612
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 133,200

continued



FINANCIAL CONDITION
ROSS COUNTY

FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Continued)

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-
Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA through
Program Title: Number Grant Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed through the Area 20/21 Workforce Investment Board:

Workforce Investment Act Cluster:

Workforce Investment Act - Adult 17.258 31-6400-085 307,252
Work Investment Act- Adult Administration 17.258 31-6400-085 64,467
ARRA - Workforce Investment Act - Adult 17.258 31-6400-085 142,786
ARRA - Work Investment Act- Adult Administration 17.258 31-6400-085 14,241
Total - Workforce Investment Act - Adult 528,746
Workforce Investment Act - Youth 17.259 31-6400-085 401,038
Work Investment Act - Youth Administration 17.259 31-6400-085 17,642
ARRA - Workforce Investment Act - Youth 17.259 31-6400-085 233,730
Total - Workforce Investment Act - Youth 652,410
Workforce Investment Act - Dislocated Workers Program 17.260 31-6400-085 463,026
Work Investment Act - Dislocated Workers Program - Administration 17.260 31-6400-085 40,204
ARRA - Workforce Investment Act - Dislocated Workers 17.260 31-6400-085 297,710
Total - Workforce Investment Act - Dislocated Workers 800,940
Total Workforce Investment Act Cluster 1,982,096
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 1,982,096

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Direct from U.S. Department of Transportation:

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 n/a 32,910
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 n/a 81,871
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 n/a 668,227

Total Airport Improvement Program 783,008

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PID # 21250 210,674
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PID # 84940 5,670

Total Highway Planning and Construction 216,344
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 999,352

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Passed through the Ohio Department of Education:

Special Education Cluster:

Special Education Grants to States 84.027 066225-6BSF-2009/2010 49,612
Special Education Preschool Grants 84.173 066225-PGS1-2009/2010 9,597
Total Special Education Cluster 59,209
State Grants for Innovative Programs 84.298 066225-C2S1-2007 98
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 59,307

2 continued



FINANCIAL CONDITION
ROSS COUNTY

FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Continued)

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-
Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA through
Program Title: Number Grant Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through the Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 G-1011-11-5180 57,078
Medical Assistance Program- Waiver Service 93.778 G-1011-11-5180 41,938
Medical Assistance Program- MAC 93.778 G-1011-11-5180 20,378
ARRA- eFMAP Medical Assistance Program 93.778 G-1011-11-5180 28,664
Total Medical Assistance Program 90,980
Passed through the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services:
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 G-1011-11-5180 46,986
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 G-1011-11-5180 3,475,820
Child Welfare Services State Grants 93.645 G-1011-11-5180 66,022
IV-E Admin and Training Payment 93.658 G-1011-11-5180 390,376
IV-E Foster Care Maintenance 93.658 G-1011-11-5180 750,487
ARRA- IV-E Foster Care Maintenance 93.658 G-1011-11-5180 39,882
Total - Foster Care Title IV-E 1,180,745
IV-E Admin and Training Payment 93.659 G-1011-11-5180 238,252
Child Abuse and Neglect State Grants 93.669 G-1011-11-5180 1,897
Chaffee Foster Care Independence Program 93.674 G-1011-11-5180 37,042
Child Care Cluster:
Child Care Development Block Grant 93.575 G-1011-11-5180 144,297
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds 93.596 G-1011-11-5180 477,121
ARRA - Child Care Development Block Grant 93.713 G-1011-11-5180 189,548
Total Child Care Cluster 810,966
Social Service Block Grant 93.667 G-1011-11-5180 1,390,529
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 G-1011-11-5180 292,233
ARRA - Child Support Enforcement 93.563 G-1011-11-5180 572,884
Total - Child Support Enforcement 865,117
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 G-1011-11-5180 787,082
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 9,048,516
continued




FINANCIAL CONDITION
ROSS COUNTY

FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Continued)

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-
Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA through
Program Title: Number Grant Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed through the Ohio Department of Public Safety - Emergency Management Agency:
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 2009-EP-E9-0061 51,000
Homeland Security Grant Program:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2007-GE-T7-0030 2,971
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2008-GE-T8-0025 51,930
Total Homeland Security Grant Program 54,901
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 105,901
U.S. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION
Passed Through the Ohio Secretary of State:
Voting Access for Individuals with Disabilities - Grants to States 93.617 n/a 11,665
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 90.401 n/a 7,686
TOTAL - U.S. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION 19,351
Total Federal Awards Expenditures 13,295,363

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.




FINANCIAL CONDITION
ROSS COUNTY

NOTES TO THE FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Federal Awards Expenditures Schedule (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the
County’s federal award programs. The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting,
except for Highway Planning Construction (CFDA #20.205) and Workforce Investment Act Cluster (CFDA
#17.258, #17.259, and #17.260) expenditures which are presented on an accrual basis.

NOTE B - SUBRECIPIENTS

The County passes-through certain Federal assistance received from the Ohio Department of
Development to the City of Chillicothe (subrecipient). As described in Note A, the County records
expenditures of Federal awards to the City of Chillicothe when paid in cash.

The City of Chillicothe has certain compliance responsibilities related to administering these Federal
Programs. Under Federal Circular A-133, the County is responsible for monitoring subrecipients to help
assure that Federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and
the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and that performance goals are achieved.

NOTE C — COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) REVOLVING LOAN PROGRAMS

The County has established a revolving loan program to provide low-interest loans to businesses to
create jobs for persons from low-moderate income households. The Federal Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) grants money for these loans to the County passed through the Ohio
Department of Development. The initial loan of this money was recorded as a disbursement on the
Federal Award Expenditure Schedule (the Schedule). Loans repaid, including interest, are used to make
additional loans. Such subsequent loans are subject to certain compliance requirements imposed by
HUD, but are not included as disbursements on the schedule.

These loans are collateralized by mortgages on the property. At December 31, 2009, the gross amount of
loans outstanding under this program was $17,759. There are no delinquent amounts due.

NOTE D - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS
Certain Federal programs require that the County contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to

support the Federally-funded programs. The County has complied with the matching requirements. The
expenditure of non-Federal matching funds is not included on the Schedule.
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Mary Taylor, cra

Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Ross County
2 North Paint Street
Chillicothe, Ohio 45601

To the Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Ross County, Ohio (the County) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 10, 2010. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government
Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control
over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely
correct misstatements. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control
deficiencies resulting in more than a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and timely corrected.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider material weaknesses,
as defined above.

88 E. Broad St. / Tenth Floor / Columbus, OH 43215-3506
Telephone: (614) 466-3402 (800) 443-9275 Fax: (614) 728-7199
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Ross County

Independent Accountants’ Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Required by
Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether the County’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters we must report under Government Auditing Standards.

We did note certain matters not requiring inclusion in this report that we reported to the County’s
management in a separate letter dated June 10, 2010.

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, the Board of

County Commissioners, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. We intend it for no one
other than these specified parties.

Auditor of State

June 10, 2010



Mary Taylor, cra

Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM, INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133, AND FEDERAL
AWARDS EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE

Ross County
2 North Paint Street
Chillicothe, Ohio 45601

To the Board of County Commissioners:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Ross County, Ohio (the County) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance
Supplement that apply to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2009.
The summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings identifies the County’s
major federal programs. The County’s management is responsible for complying with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each major federal program. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits included in the Comptroller General
of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure whether noncompliance occurred with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could directly and materially affect a major federal program. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements
and performing other procedures we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the
County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Ross County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that apply to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The County’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could directly and materially affect a major federal program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of opining on compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

88 E. Broad St. / Tenth Floor / Columbus, OH 43215-3506
Telephone: (614) 466-3402 (800) 443-9275 Fax: (614) 728-7199
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Ross County

Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Federal Program, Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, and Federal Awards Expenditure Schedule

Page 2

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or to timely detect and correct, noncompliance with a federal program compliance requirement. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a federal program compliance requirement will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

Federal Awards Expenditures Schedule

We have also audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated June 10, 2010. Our audit was
performed to form opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the County's basic
financial statements. The accompanying federal awards expenditures schedule provides additional
information as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. We subjected this information to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements. In our opinion, this information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

We intend this report solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Board of
County Commissioners, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities. It is not intended for
anyone other than these specified parties.

77’7%7 J/flaz/

Mary Taylor, CPA
Auditor of State

June 10, 2010, except for the Federal Awards Expenditure Schedule dated June 17, 2010.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
ROSS COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
DECEMBER 31, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’'S RESULTS

(d)(1)() Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control No
weaknesses reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(@)(ii) Were there any other significant No
deficiencies in internal control reported
at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material No
noncompliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(@)(iv) Were there any material internal control No
weaknesses reported for major federal
programs?
(d)(2)(iv) Were there any other significant No
deficiencies in internal control reported
for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Unqualified
Opinion
(d)(Q)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under No
§ .5107?
(d)(1)(vii) | Major Programs (list): Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Cluster CFDA #10.551,10.561
Workforce Investment Act Cluster
CFDA #17.258, 17.259, 17.260
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
CFDA #93.558
Child Care Cluster
CFDA #93.575, 93.596, 93.713
Child Support Enforcement
CFDA #93.563
Social Services Block Grant
CFDA #93.667
Foster Care Title IV-E
CFDA #93.658
(d)(1)(viii) | Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $ 398,861
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

11




FINANCIAL CONDITION
ROSS COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Continued)

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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STEPHEN A. NEAL

June 10, 2010

Honorable Citizens of Ross County, Ohio
And Ross County Board of Commissioners:

Honorable James M. Caldwell
Honorable Frank X. Hirsch
Honorable R. Douglas Corcoran

As Auditor of Ross County, Ohio, I am pleased to present the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2009. This report conforms to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governmental entities.

The responsibility for the accuracy of the data presented, as well as the completeness and fairness of the
presentation including disclosures, rests with the management of the County. The County has a
framework of internal controls established to ensure the accuracy of the data presented, as well as the
completeness and fairness of the presentation. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed the
anticipated benefits, the controls provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

This report provides the necessary information to the taxpayers of Ross County and other interested
persons to allow them to gain a clear understanding of the County’s financial affairs, as well as provide
the management of Ross County with sound financial information for future decision-making.

GAAP requires Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), a narrative introduction, overview,
and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A is located in the financial section of this
report, following the Independent Accountants’ Report. This transmittal letter is designed to compliment
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.

The Independent Accountants’ Report is located at the front of the financial section of this report and
contains an unqualified opinion issued by the Auditor of State of Ohio on the County’s financial

statements for the year ended December 31, 2009.

HISTORY, COUNTY ORGANIZATION, AND SERVICES

Ross County was formed on August 20, 1798 by proclamation of Arthur St. Clair, Governor of the
Northwest Territory. It included a large part of what is now the State of Ohio. Ross County’s huge size
was reduced in 1803 by the establishment of Franklin County and then later by the organization of other
counties. Ross County was named for James Ross of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania, a close friend of
Governor St. Clair; although many thought it should be named after Nathaniel Massie who surveyed the
area. In 1800 the capital of the Northwest Territory was moved to Chillicothe, the present county seat.
Chillicothe also served as the first capital of the State of Ohio from 1803 until 1816, except for an interval
from late 1809 to 1812 when the state legislature met in Zanesville. In 1817, the state capital moved 40
miles north of Chillicothe to Columbus, the State’s present capital city, because it was more centrally
located. Today, in addition to Chillicothe, Ross County encompasses sixteen townships and six villages.
The County includes 693 square miles, the second largest in the state, and has a population of 75,972
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according to the Federal Census Bureau. There are 88 counties in the State of Ohio and Ross County
ranks 34" in population among these counties.

The County has only those powers conferred upon it by Ohio law. A three-member Board of
Commissioners, elected at large in even-numbered years for four-year overlapping terms, serves as the
taxing authority, the contracting body and chief administrator of public services for the County. The
Board of Commissioners adopts the annual budget and makes the annual appropriations for expenditures
of all county monies. Eleven other elected officials and various other appointed department heads
manage the internal operations of their respective offices or departments.

The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer of the County and serves as the tax assessor for the various
political subdivisions located within the County. The Auditor is responsible for maintaining all financial
records and establishing the taxing rates for personal property and real estate. Once the taxes are
collected, the Auditor distributes these tax receipts to the appropriate political subdivisions. No County
contract may be entered into or obligation incurred without first receiving the Auditor’s certification that
funds are available for payment or are in the process of collection. The Auditor is also the central
disbursing agent who issues County warrants to make payments to creditors for all liabilities incurred by
the County.

The County Treasurer collects local property taxes, is the custodian of all County funds, and is
responsible for investing idle funds as prescribed by Ohio law. The other elected officials are the Clerk of
Courts, Prosecuting Attorney, Coroner, Engineer, Sheriff, Recorder, and three Common Pleas Court
Judges.

Ross County employs 529 people who provide various County services. These services include
legislative and executive, judicial, public safety, public works, health, human services, economic
development, and other County services.

For financial reporting purposes, the County complies with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14 as
amended by GASB Statement No. 39 in defining the financial reporting entity. The financial reporting
entity of the County includes all of the elected officials, organizations, activities and functions that are not
legally separate from the County and whose corporate powers the County holds.

The County also serves as fiscal agent for various agencies, boards and commissions; however, the
County is not financially accountable for them. Therefore, the operations of these entities will be limited
to reflecting only the changes in their assets and liabilities in the agency funds of the County. Note 1 to
the financial statements provides a complete discussion of the reporting entity.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Ross County is located in the south-central portion of the state, approximately 40 miles south of
Columbus and 90 miles east of Cincinnati. Connected to major Interstate Highways 70, 71, and 75 via
U.S. Routes 23, 35, and 50, Ross County is strategically located for both commercial and industrial
development.

Adena Regional Medical Center, a private non-profit health care corporation, is the County’s largest
employer employing 2,350 people. The County’s largest industrial employer is P. H. Glatfelter Co. that
employs 1,332 people. Other major employers in Ross County and the number of people employed
include the Veteran’s Affairs Medical Center (1,389), Kenworth Truck Company, (1,014), and two state
prisons that employ 1,087 people combined.



Agriculture remains a large contributor to the Ross County economy. According to the latest statistics
available from the Ohio Department of Agriculture, nearly $52 million of agricultural products are
produced in the County annually. There are an estimated 1,000 farms containing approximately 216,000
acres of land.

Ross County has experienced steady growth in population. The 2009 population, as estimated by the
Federal Bureau of the Census, stood at 75,972 people, an increase of 2,627 people or about 3.6% from the
2000 Decennial Census count.

Ross County’s average unemployment rate stood at 12.0% in 2009, which was up from the 8.0% reported
for the previous year and reflects the general trend in the national economy.

The retail market in Ross County grew modestly in 2009 as evidenced by the County’s sales tax revenues
reported in the government-wide statements. The total 2009 County sales tax revenue was $11,212,937
up $149,369 or 1.35% from the 2008 sales tax revenue of $11,063,568. Ross County continues to serve
much of southeastern Ohio as a regional shopping hub.

Ross County’s rich prehistoric Indian heritage and its prominent place in the development of the
Northwest Territory and in Ohio statehood make the County an attractive tourist stop. Major attractions
include the outdoor drama Tecumseh, Hopewell Culture National Historical Park, the Adena State
Memorial, the Chillicothe Paints Prospect League baseball team, the First Capital District in downtown
Chillicothe, and several state parks located in or near Ross County. Collections from the County’s 4.25%
hotel/motel tax for 2009, which funds the Ross County and Chillicothe Convention and Visitors Bureau
(3%) and the Ross County Convention Facilities Authority (1.25%), totaled $253,928. This was a
decrease of 5.8% from the previous year’s total of $269,638. It is expected that the tourism industry will
grow in the future once the overall economy improves due to the efforts of community leaders to promote
the area.

Heading into 2010, Ross County officials are cautiously optimistic about the prospects of long-term
economic growth within the County even though the downturn in the national economy is having an
impact now. Having identified economic development as the number one priority of the County, the
Board of County Commissioners contributed funds to an Office of Economic Development, along with
the City of Chillicothe, the Ross County Community Improvement Corporation (CIC) and the Chillicothe
and Ross County Chamber of Commerce, to promote economic development in Ross County. In
addition, the Ohio Department of Development leases office space from Ross County for an Economic
Outreach Office to assist with economic development efforts throughout the region. The cooperative aim
of all economic development officials in the County has been to assist existing business with job retention
and expansion, while at the same time reaching out to new business prospects both domestically and
internationally. The County Commissioners have also created four Jobs & Enterprise Zones in the
County offering tax incentives and other benefits to new or expanding businesses located in these zones,
as permitted by Ohio law.

The County continues to work with the CIC, the City of Chillicothe and other economic development
officials to develop the Gateway Interchange Industrial Park. This Industrial Park is strategically located
at the intersection of U.S. Route 35 and State Route 104. The development of this industrial park is seen
as another positive step in the community’s efforts to attract new industrial employers to the County and
is being actively marketed by economic development officials. Recently, the Ross County Community
Improvement Corporation obtained a $500,000 grant from the State of Ohio, a $500,000 low interest loan
from the State of Ohio, and a $245,000 private bank loan; as well as committed a $250,000 equity
contribution in the form of land and site improvements to construct a spec building in the industrial park.
This spec building was completed in 2008.



Planning for the future, officials are now working to develop a major commerce park north of Chillicothe
near the intersection of the State Route 207 and U.S. Route 23 connector that opened in the fall of 2006.
Discussions are underway to extend State Route 207 to the intersection of State Routes 159 and 180,
which will open this area up to even greater potential development. The County also received a federal
grant and has run a main water line to this site. This planned commerce park should play a prominent role
in the future economic development of the Ross County area.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

It is the County’s policy to establish an annual budget that ensures that current year’s expected resources
are sufficient to fund current year’s anticipated expenditures. Budgeted expenditures are set based upon
available resources with the County Commissioners determining the level of funding for each department
or office within the county government.

The County has an investment policy that is used to manage the investment of County funds. Any
financial institution that holds County funds must agree to the requirements of this policy. This policy
details the objective and allowable rules for the safekeeping of County funds.

The County’s capital asset policy is designed to provide accountability and control over the County’s
capital assets and to assist departments in gathering and maintaining information needed for the

preparation of the financial statements.

The County also has a Policy and Procedures Manual that is used to assist all County departments in the
day-to-day procedures and practices of the County.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND DEPARTMENTAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The widening of St. Rt. 104 to five lanes from the U.S. Rt. 35 exit and extending to the new St. Rt. 207
connector began last summer. The County secured nearly $11.7 million of federal and state funding to
complete this widening. The County developed the plans in-house at an estimated cost of $1.6 million as
the County’s contribution. This widening has been identified as a priority for the County for several years
to relieve traffic congestion, which is increasing with the recent completion of the St. Rt. 207 connector.
This improvement will also enhance the County’s economic development efforts by improving access to
the Gateway Interchange Industrial Park. This widening project should be completed prior to the end of
this year.

In 2009, Ross County began the implementation of its ten-year capital improvements plan for the Ross
County Airport. This plan outlines $2.2 million of improvements to be undertaken over a ten year period.
The County’s contribution of the total project cost is only $110,290 or 5 percent of the overall
improvement costs. The balance of these improvements will be funded through a series of grants through
the Federal Aviation Administration. This plan includes the construction of an additional taxiway,
rehabilitation of the existing taxiway, and improvement of lighting for both the runway and taxiways.
The County views this project as a vital economic tool to keep and attract businesses to the area.
Improvements will also enhance the safety of the airport and make it even more attractive for business
and general aviation travel in the future.

The County also updated its aerial and oblique photography during 2009 with a contract through
Pictometry International for a total cost of $84,200. This updated photography replaces three year old
photography and will be used by the County in a variety of ways. Detailed maps with current
photography are extremely important for our public safety forces. Economic development site selectors
and other real estate professionals need good geographic information and photography when considering
development projects within the area. This information is also used to update the County’s real property
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tax records regarding new construction and demolition. With a program called ChangeFindr, footprints of
buildings that have changed since the last photography can be highlighted on the new photography so
appraisal staff can review for valuation changes.

FOR THE FUTURE

The County has recently awarded a bid to The Shelly Company to resurface over thirty-six miles of
county and township roadway during 2009 at a total cost of $1.92 million. As has been customary for
some time, the County Engineer combined township road improvements projects with the County’s
projects into one large bid in an attempt to secure the lowest possible cost for all entities involved. The
participating townships transfer funds to the County to pay their project costs. The sources of revenue to
pay for these projects include the County’s motor vehicle and gasoline tax receipts, State Issue One funds
and Federal Community Development Block Grant awards. All paving is to be completed by October 1,
2010.

Searching for ways to better use available technology to improve service and reduce costs, the County
Auditor, in cooperation with the County Auditors’ Association of Ohio (CAAO), has secured a state grant
in the amount of $80,000 to determine the feasibility of the development of a joint Ohio county financial
and payroll software package that could be shared and maintained by multiple counties. A decision has
been made that the best potential option to consider is the modification of the existing Ohio State
- Auditor’s Uniform Accounting Network (UAN) for smaller governments like townships and villages to
be adaptable to counties. The feasibility and cost of modification to the UAN to accommodate counties
should be made by the state auditor’s office before the end of this year. A group of county auditors from
around the state are working with the Ross County Auditor and the State Auditor’s office on this project.

The County Commissioners recently created the Ross County Re-entry Coalition to work to reduce the
recidivism rate of County ex-offenders. This Coalition will function as a group of County officials, non-
profits, social service agencies, businesses, citizens and faith-based partners who are united in and
committed to reducing recidivism among ex-offenders living in Ross County. It is the mission of the
Ross County Re-entry Coalition to provide leadership, oversight and implementation guidance in order to
assist individuals released from prison or the County jail and returning to the community to succeed. The
Coalition hopes to provide coordinated opportunities through a network of services that these individuals
can access. The Coalition is actively seeking grants and other funding opportunities. The ultimate goal of
this Coalition is to build a safer community and reduce the tremendous cost of crime to its citizens.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Ross County, Ohio for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2008. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Ross County has
received a Certificate of Achievement for the last nineteen consecutive years. We believe our current
report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are
submitting it to GFOA.



The publication of this 2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Ross County demonstrates the
continual commitment to professionalism of the Ross County Auditor’s office. This report significantly
increases the accountability of the management of the County to its taxpayers.

My sincere thanks to the Board of Ross County Commissioners, each of the other elected officials and
department heads, and a great number of County employees without whose cooperation the preparation of
this report would not have been possible.

I also want to acknowledge and thank J.L. Uhrig and Associates, Inc. for their professional expertise and
technical assistance in preparing this report. Finally, I would like to express my deep appreciation to all
the members of my staff who contributed to this report, especially Mike Neal, Lucy Thomas, Jerry Uhrig,
Jeanne Groves, and Rita Haubeil.

Sincerely,

/@;M.W

Stephen A. Neal, CGFM
Ross County Auditor
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Ross County Historical Society Museum

Located in Downtown Chillicothe, it houses many artifacts of early Ohio
Statehood including the table on which Ohio’s Constitution was signed.
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Mary Tavlor, cra

Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

Ross County
2 North Paint Street
Chillicothe, Ohio 45601

To the Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Ross County, Ohio (the
County), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively comprises the County’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the
United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to reasonably assure whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amourits and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Ross County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2009, and the
respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the General, Job and Family Services, Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, Correctional
and Law Enforcement, Board of Developmental Disabilities, and the Economic Development Funds for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 10, 2010,
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. While we did not opine on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, that
report describes the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. You should read it in conjunction with this report in assessing the
results of our audit.

88 E. Broad St. / Tenth Floor / Columbus, OH 43215-3506
Telephone: (614) 466-3402 (800) 443-9275 Fax: (614) 728-7199
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Ross County
Independent Accountants’ Report
Page 2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires. We have applied certain limited procedures, consisting principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measuring and presenting the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

We conducted our audit to opine on the financial statements that collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements. The introductory section, combining nonmajor fund statements and schedules and
statistical tables provide additional information and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. We subjected the combining nonmajor fund statements and schedules to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, this information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. We did not
subject the introductory section and statistical tables to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Mary Taylor, CPA
Auditor of State

June 10, 2010
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Ross County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)

The discussion and analysis of Ross County’s financial performance provides an overview of the
County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. The intent of this discussion
and analysis is to look at the County’s financial performance as a whole.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for 2009 are as follows:
Total assets of the County exceeded its total liabilities at December 31, 2009 by $44,700,444.
The County’s total net assets increased $3,748,589 or 9.15% from 2008 to 2009.

Program revenues for governmental activities accounted for $36,061,203 or 60.95% of total
governmental activities revenue. General revenues for governmental activities accounted for
$23,105,693 or 39.05%, of total governmental activities revenue.

The County had $55,441,007 in expenses related to governmental activities; $36,061,203 of these
expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, operating and capital grants and
contributions. General revenues (primarily taxes) of $23,105,693 were sufficient to provide for
the remainder of these programs.

Among major funds, the General Fund had $19,617,890 in revenues, $11,462,601 in
expenditures, and ($7,309,345) in total other financing sources and uses. The fund balance in the
General Fund increased by $845,944 from $2,986,976 to $3,832,920.

In 2009, the County’s outstanding bonds reflect a net decrease of $575,000 or 4.94% to
$11,070,000. Bond anticipation notes outstanding of $1,452,000 were completely retired during
the year and loans outstanding at year-end totaled $560,530, thus reflecting a decrease of
$1,550,385 from the notes and loans outstanding at the end of the prior year. Total debt
outstanding decreased in 2009 by $2,085,043 to $11,773,784.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. These statements are organized so the
reader can understand the County’s financial position.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provides information about the activities of
the County as a whole and present a longer-term view of the County’s finances.

Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental activities, these statements
tell how these services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
financial statements also report the County’s most significant funds in more detail than the government-
wide statements. Nonmajor funds are presented separately from the major funds in total and in one
column. For the County, the General Fund is the most significant of the major funds.
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Ross County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)

REPORTING THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most important questions asked about the finances of the County is “How did the County do
financially during 2009?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities answer this
question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is
similar to the accounting method used by most private-sector companies. The accrual basis of accounting
recognizes all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets and changes in those assets. This change in net assets
is important because it tells the reader whether the financial position of the County as a whole has
increased or decreased. Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net assets are one indicator of
whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating. Causes for these changes may be the result
of many factors. Some of these factors are financial and some are not. Non-financial factors include
changes in the County’s property tax base and the condition of the County’s capital assets (roads, bridges,
buildings, sewer lines, etc). These factors need to be considered when assessing the overall health of the
County.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the County is divided into two kinds of
activities:

Governmental Activities - Most of the County’s programs and services are reported here including
human services, health, public safety, public works, economic development and assistance and general
government. These services are funded primarily by taxes and intergovernmental revenues including
federal and state grants and other shared revenues.

Business-Type Activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover
all or most of the cost of the services provided. The County wide sewer operation is reported here.

REPORTING THE COUNTY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the County’s major funds. The
County’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, Job and Family Services Fund, Motor Vehicle
Gas Tax Fund, Correctional and Law Enforcement Fund, Board of Developmental Disabilities Fund and
Economic Development Fund.

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s

basic services are reported in these funds that focus on how money flows into and out of these funds and
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Ross County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)

the year-end balances available for spending. These funds are reported on the modified accrual
accounting method that measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash.

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the County’s general
government operations and the basic services being provided along with the financial resources available.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s short-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains a multitude of individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the major funds, which were identified earlier. Data from the other
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

Proprietary Funds - The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds; enterprise funds and
internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses an enterprise fund to account for
its County wide sewer operation. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate cost internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses an internal service fund
to account for the County’s run-off claims from the previous health benefit self-insurance program, the
activity from the new fully funded health benefit program, and the activity from the new workers’
compensation retrospective rating program. Because this service predominately benefits governmental
rather than business-type functions, it has been included with governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the County. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources from those funds are not available to support the County’s programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for the proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents combining and individual fund statements and schedules.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Table 1 provides a summary of the County’s net assets for 2009 compared to 2008:

15



Ross County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)
Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Restated
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets:
Current and Other Assets $30,649,110  $28,785,382 $52,740 $40,059  $30,701,850  $28,825,441
Capital Assets, Net 40,350,349 41,070,987 96,415 101,415 40,446,764 41,172,402
Total Assets 70,999,459 69,856,369 149,155 141,474 71,148,614 69,997,843
Liabilities:
Current and Other Liabilities 12,728,899 13,061,110 1,804 16,823 12,730,703 13,077,933
Long-Term Liabilities 13,717,467 15,968,055 0 0 13,717,467 15,968,055
Total Liabilities 26,446,366 29,029,165 1,804 16,823 26,448,170 29,045,988
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 29,706,359 28,280,507 96,415 101,415 29,802,774 28,381,922
Restricted 10,892,991 10,932,310 0 0 10,892,991 10,932,310
Unrestricted 3,953,743 1,614,387 50,936 23,236 4,004,679 1,637,623
Total Net Assets $44,553,093  $40,827,204 $147,351 $124,651  $44,700,444  $40,951,855

Current assets increased due to a rise in intergovernmental receivable from the small cities block grant
program, as well as the human service programs through Job and Family Services, and Children Services.

Capital assets decreased as a result of current depreciation and disposals that exceeded new acquisitions
and improvements made to existing capital assets.

Current liabilities decreased due a drop in intergovernmental payable from the savings in the County’s
new workers’ compensation retrospective rating program that began in 2009.

Long-term liabilities decreased from the reduction in the County’s long-term bond obligations from the
scheduled debt payments made in accordance with the debt covenants, as well as the County’s retirement
of long-term note obligations.

As noted earlier, the County’s net assets, when reviewed over time, may serve as a useful indicator of the
County’s financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $44,700,444. By far,
the largest portion of the County’s net assets (66.67%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
are still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets
is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. An additional portion of the County’s net assets represents resources that are subject to
restrictions on how they can be used. These resources accounted for 24.37% of total net assets. The
remaining balance represents unrestricted net assets and may be used to meet the County’s ongoing
obligation to citizens and creditors. Total net assets increased in 2009 by $3,748,589. As of December
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31, 2009, the County is able to report positive net assets of $44,553,093 for governmental type activities.
For business type activities, positive net assets of $147,351 are reported.

Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for the year 2009. Revenue and expense comparisons to 2008 are
presented to provide a comparative analysis of government-wide data with the prior year.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Restated
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $8,070,246 $7,791,605 $53,554 $53,499 $8,123,800 $7,845,104
Operating Grants and Contributions 25,833,502 24,382,925 0 0 25,833,502 24,382,925
Capital Grants and Contributions 2,157,455 1,773,849 0 0 2,157,455 1,773,849
Total Program Revenues 36,061,203 33,948,379 53,554 53,499 36,114,757 34,001,878
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 8,637,273 8,234,150 0 0 8,637,273 8,234,150
Sales Tax 11,212,937 11,063,568 0 0 11,212,937 11,063,568
Grants and Entitlements 1,600,032 1,396,402 0 0 1,600,032 1,396,402
Investment Earnings 356,226 624,595 0 0 356,226 624,595
Miscellaneous 1,299,225 1,118,999 1,660 1,996 1,300,885 1,120,995
Total General Revenues 23,105,693 22,437,714 1,660 1,996 23,107,353 22,439,710
Total Revenues 59,166,896 56,386,093 55,214 55,495 59,222,110 56,441,588
Program Expenses:
General Government:

Legislative and Executive 6,038,689 6,219,012 0 0 6,038,689 6,219,012

Judicial 4,001,088 4,063,096 0 0 4,001,088 4,063,096
Public Safety 10,166,766 11,381,124 0 0 10,166,766 11,381,124
Public Works 8,100,154 6,143,054 0 0 8,100,154 6,143,054
Health 506,371 633,843 0 0 506,371 633,843
Human Services 25,364,508 24,751,610 0 0 25,364,508 24,751,610
Economic Development and Assistance 665,792 884,524 0 0 665,792 884,524
Interest and Fiscal Charges 597,639 747,836 0 0 597,639 747,836
County Wide Sewer 0 0 32,514 88,292 32,514 88,292
Total Expenses 55,441,007 54,824,099 32,514 88,292 55,473,521 54,912,391
Change in Net Assets 3,725,889 1,561,994 22,700 (32,797) 3,748,589 1,529,197
Net Assets - January 1, Restated 40,827,204 39,265,210 124,651 157,448 40,951,855 39,422,658
Net Assets - December 31 $44,553,093  $40,827,204 $147,351 $124,651 $44,700,444  $40,951,855

Governmental Activities

The most significant program expenses for the County are Human Services, Public Safety, Public Works,
and Legislative and Executive. These programs account for 89.59% of the total governmental activities.
Human Services, which accounts for 45.75% of the total, represents costs associated with providing
services for various state and locally mandated public assistance and welfare programs for families and
individuals. These expenses reflect programs administered by Job and Family Services, Board of
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Developmental Disabilities, Child Support Enforcement Agency and Children Services. Public Safety,
which represents 18.34% of the total, represents costs mainly associated with the operation of the
Sheriff’s Department and County Correctional Facility. Public Works, which accounts for 14.61% of the
total, represents costs associated with the operation of the County Engineer in maintaining the County’s
roads and bridges. Legislative and Executive expenses, which is 10.89% of the total, represents costs
associated with the general administration of county government including the County Commissioners,
Auditor, Treasurer, Prosecutor and Recorder.

Funding for the most significant programs indicated above is from charges for services, operating grants,
and in some instances property and sales taxes. The Child Support Enforcement and Jobs and Family
Services Departments are basically funded with federal and state monies. Children Services and the
Board of Developmental Disabilities are primarily supported by both voted property tax levies and federal
and state monies. The operation of the Sheriff’s Department and County Correctional Facility is funded
through transfers from the General Fund and charges for services generated through per diem charges to
house prisoners from other jurisdictions. The most significant funding sources for the County Engineer
are motor vehicle license fees and gasoline taxes.

The net assets for the governmental activities increased $3,725,889 or 9.13%. Last year, net assets
increased $1,561,994 or 3.98%. Total revenues increased $2,780,803 or 4.94% over last year and
expenses increased $616,908 or 1.13% over last year.

The major factor in the change in revenues is due to a significant increase in program revenues of
$2,112,824 over last year, representing 75.98% of the increase in total revenues. Charges for services,
operating grants, and capital grants each contributed to this increase by reflecting increases of $278,641,
$1,450,577 and $383,606 respectively.

General revenues also contributed an increase of $667,979 or 24.02% to the increase in total revenues,
with property taxes, and grants and entitlements not restricted to specific programs comprising the largest
percentage of the increase in general revenues.

Total expenses increased by $616,908 or 1.13%. Human Services expenses increased $612,898 or 2.48%
due primarily to increased operational activity at the Board of Developmental Disabilities. Public Works
expenses increased $1,957,100 or 31.86% due to the fact that the County did not capitalize as much on
the County roads and bridges or at the Ross County Airport this year compared to last year, and the
current year operational expenses and depreciation charged to these assets were greater than those of last
year. The overall increase in the previously mentioned program service areas was reduced by a decrease
in Public Safety expenses, which reflects a decrease of $1,214,358 or 10.67% that is attributed mainly to
cuts in the overall operational activity at the Sheriff’s Department and County Correctional Facility.
Further reductions totaling $738,732 or 5.89% in the remaining program areas - Legislative and
Executive, Judicial, Health, Economic Development and Assistance, and Interest and Fiscal Charges -
helped to minimize some of the overall increase in expenses.

Table 3, for governmental activities, indicates the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The
Statement of Activities reflects the cost of program services and the charges for services and sales, grants
and contributions offsetting those services. The net cost of services identifies the cost of those services
supported by tax revenues and unrestricted intergovernmental revenues.
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Table 3
Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services Services Services
2009 2008 2009 2008

General Government:

Legislative and Executive $6,038,689 $6,219,012 $2,865,156 $2,921,219

Judicial 4,001,088 4,063,096 2,302,326 2,488,938
Public Safety 10,166,766 11,381,124 7,191,712 8,557,785
Public Works 8,100,154 6,143,054 479,009 (1,202,966)
Health 506,371 633,843 506,371 633,843
Human Services 25,364,508 24,751,610 6,745,008 6,148,369
Economic Development and Assistance 665,792 884,524 (1,307,417) 580,696
Interest and Fiscal Charges 597,639 747,836 597,639 747,836
Total Expenses $55,441,007 $54,824,099 $19,379,804 $20,875,720

It should be noted that 65.04% of the cost of services for governmental activities are derived from
program revenues including charges for services, operating grants, and capital grants and other
contributions.

For Public Safety, the $7,191,712 in net cost of services primarily indicates the General Fund support
provided for the operation of the County Correctional Facility and Sheriff’s Department. To help reduce
the financial burden on the General Fund and increase program revenues, the County actively pursues
contracts for the housing of prisoners from other jurisdictions. During 2009, the County received
$961,680 in revenue for housing prisoners.

The $6,745,008 in net cost of services for Human Services demonstrates the costs of services that are not
supported from state and federal resources. As such, the taxpayers have approved property tax levies for
several programs including the Board of Developmental Disabilities and Children Services. For 2009, the
net cost of providing these Human Services was 34.80% of the total net cost of all governmental
activities.

Business-Type Activities

Program revenues more than covered the costs of operation for the County’s business-type activities as
net assets increased by $22,700 or 18.21% due to a significant decrease in expenses during 2009.

Governmental Funds

The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in
assessing financing requirements. Unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the
County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year. These funds are accounted for using
the modified accrual basis of accounting. The County’s governmental funds reported combined ending
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fund balances of $10,183,538 (74.47% is unreserved), a decrease of $201,777 or 1.94% from the previous
year. The funds that contributed to this decrease the most were the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Fund,
Economic Development Fund, nonmajor special revenue — Child Enforcement Fund, and nonmajor
capital project - Permanent Improvement Fund.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. At the end of 2009, the total fund balance
in the General Fund was $3,832,920 of which $3,008,666 was unreserved. During the year, revenues
exceeded expenditures by $8,155,289. However, operating transfers of $7,434,886 were made to various
other funds primarily for the retirement of debt and for the subsidization of the Sheriff’s Department,
thereby resulting in an increase in the fund balance of $845,944 or 28.32%. The General Fund balance at
year-end equaled 19.54% of the total 2009 General Fund revenue.

For the other major funds of the County, the Job and Family Services fund balance increased $52,757 due
to the fact that the decrease in expenditures related to its programs was greater than the decrease in state
and federal funding levels. The Motor Vehicle Gas Tax fund balance decreased $347,927 due to an
increase in expenditures that outpaced the increase in the revenues used to support its activities. The
Correctional and Law Enforcement fund balance increased $368,342 due to a decrease in expenditure
activity that, in turn, allowed for a decrease in the subsidization from the General Fund in the current
year. The Board of Developmental Disabilities fund balance decreased $52,873 due to an increase in
expenditure activity that exceeded the increase in the revenues used to support its programs. The
Economic Development fund balance decreased $1,156,494 due to the debt service activity that exceeded
revenues in the fund and was made possible through interfund advances from other funds.

Proprietary Funds

The County’s only enterprise fund is the County Wide Sewer Fund. The County provides sewer services
to approximately one hundred and fifty customers in the Union Heights Subdivision. This fund provides
the same information found in the government-wide financial statements but in more detail. Net assets of
the Enterprise Fund at year-end were $147,351, of which $50,936 was unrestricted.

Budgetary Highlights — General Fund

By state statute, the County Commissioners adopt the annual operating budget for the County on the first
day of January. The County’s appropriations are restricted by the amount of anticipated revenues
certified by the Budget Commission in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code.

The final budgeted revenues and other financing sources were $19,665,990 representing an increase of
$412,572 from the original budgeted estimate of $19,253,418. The final budget reflected a 2.14%
increase from the original budgeted amount. Actual revenues and other financing sources were $313,701
or 1.6% more than the final budgeted amount.

During 2009, numerous revisions were made to the original budget of appropriations adopted by the
County Commissioners. The most significant revision in appropriations occurred in the general
government — legislative and executive function where estimates increased by $190,301.

The final budgeted expenditures and other financing uses were $19,872,388 representing an increase of

$287,344 or 1.47% from the original budgeted estimate of $19,585,054. Actual expenditures and other
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financing uses were more than the final budgeted amount by $192,726 or .99% due to the advances that
were made to other funds.

The combined effect of all these factors allowed the County’s actual fund balance in the General Fund at
December 31, 2009 to be $120,975 better than the final projections.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The County’s investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities
as of December 31, 2009, amounts to $29,802,774 (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment and infrastructure.

During 2009, road and bridge improvements totaling $1,959,252 were made throughout the County,
bringing the infrastructure investment of the County to a total of $37,273,902. Note 8 provides additional
information about the County’s capital asset activity during the 2009 fiscal year.

Long-Term Debt - At December 31, 2009, the County had total bonds outstanding of $11,070,000. The
County’s long-term bonds reflect a net decrease of $575,000 during 2009 due to the scheduled payments
made on the general obligation bonds. Also during 2009, the County completely retired the bond
anticipation notes outstanding of $1,452,000.

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. assigned a rating of “A1” to the last general obligation bonds issued by
the County.

The County’s long-term obligations include general obligation bonds, special tax revenue bonds, loans,
compensated absences and capital lease obligations. Additional information about the County’s notes,
bonds and other long-term obligations can be found in Note 9 and Note 10 of this report.

Economic Factors

Ross County is primarily a rural community with a significant agricultural and durable goods
manufacturing presence. There is also a large concentration of governmental employers in the County
that adds to the diversity of the local economy. Ross County serves much of south-central Ohio as a hub
for retail, medical and other services.

With the State of Ohio’s elimination of the tangible personal property tax for businesses, the County’s
tangible personal property tax base decreased by $25,931,130 or 77.34% from 2008 to 2009. However,
the State is currently reimbursing counties for tax losses due to the elimination of the tangible personal
property tax and these reimbursements are reflected as a part of intergovernmental revenue in the
County’s financial statements.

Receipts from the County’s 1.5% sales tax, the largest revenue source for the County’s General Fund, is
up this year. Sales tax collections for the first five months of 2010 are up 5.19% from the same period
last year. This increase is more than expected and tends to indicate consumer spending in the County is
stabilizing.
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The recent drop in interest rates is having a significant impact on the County’s revenues for this year.
Total investment earnings in 2010 are expected to be about $257,000 or 27.85% less than the $356,226
earned in 2009. The County did factor this expected decrease into the current year’s budget.

The current unemployment rate in 2010 is 13.3%, up from 12.1% this same time last year. This equates
to an additional 700 people in Ross County that are unemployed now over the 4,100 unemployed at the
same time last year. Ross County’s rate is somewhat higher than the current state and national
unemployment rates of 11.5% and 10.2%, respectively.

With regard to Ross County’s major industrial employers, Glatflelter Company has stabilized its
workforce at the local paper mill after the cuts made in 2008 and actually increased its workforce just
slightly in 2009 by 15 jobs or 1.15% of their 1,332 workforce, which serves to strengthen the company
financially to better compete in the global market in the future. Kenworth Truck Company, a division of
PACCAR, Inc., shrank its workforce once again in 2009 by 60 employees or 5.59%, and continues to
adjust work hours periodically for its remaining workforce until orders increase.

Finally, on a positive note, the health care industry is thriving in Ross County. Adena Regional Medical
Center has finalized a $60 million expansion project and hired 50 more health care employees in 2009. In
addition, the local VA Medical Center is in the process of making over $28 million in renovations. The
demand for health care workers in the County is expected to continue to increase in the future.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with
an interest in the County’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report

or requests for additional information should be addressed to Stephen A. Neal, Ross County Auditor, 2 N.
Paint Street, Suite G, Chillicothe, Ohio 45601 or call (740) 702-3080.
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Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents In Segregated Accounts
Accounts Receivable

Accrued Interest Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable

Property Taxes Receivable

Sales Taxes Receivable

Loans Receivable

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Prepaid Items

Deferred Charges

Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages Payable
Contracts Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Matured Compensated Absences Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Claims Payable
Unearned Revenue
Long-Term Liabilities:

Due Within One Year

Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Highway/Street Maintenance and Repair
Mental Retardation Services
Legislative and Executive
Judicial
Public Safety
Public Works
Human Services
Economic Development
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$7,972,597 $43,094 $8,015,691
441,376 0 441,376
182,792 9,646 192,438
119,043 0 119,043
7,234,995 0 7,234,995
9,523,573 0 9,523,573
3,210,899 0 3,210,899
1,132,759 0 1,132,759
587,723 0 587,723
118,949 0 118,949
124,404 0 124,404
4,677,776 14,434 4,692,210
35,672,573 81,981 35,754,554
70,999,459 149,155 71,148,614
697,765 0 697,765
597,784 0 597,784
960,928 1,804 962,732
1,330,759 0 1,330,759
8,099 0 8,099
140,580 0 140,580
236,833 0 236,833
8,756,151 0 8,756,151
2,113,622 0 2,113,622
11,603,845 0 11,603,845
26,446,366 1,804 26,448,170
29,706,359 96,415 29,802,774
2,744,036 0 2,744,036
2,598,943 0 2,598,943
471,971 0 471,971
693,473 0 693,473
753,556 0 753,556
55,058 0 55,058
1,443,943 0 1,443,943
1,780,735 0 1,780,735
235,850 0 235,850
115,426 0 115,426
3,953,743 50,936 4,004,679
$44,553,093 $147,351 $44,700,444
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Primary Government
Governmental Activities
Current:

General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Human Services

Economic Development and Assistance

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
County Wide Sewer

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Grants Capital Grants
Expenses for Services and Contributions  and Contributions
$6,038,689 $3,107,033 $66,500 $0
4,001,088 582,060 1,116,702 0
10,166,766 2,536,455 438,599 0
8,100,154 1,010,661 4,453,029 2,157,455
506,371 0 0 0
25,364,508 834,037 17,785,463 0
665,792 0 1,973,209 0
597,639 0 0 0
55,441,007 8,070,246 25,833,502 2,157,455
32,514 53,554 0 0
32,514 53,554 0 0
$55,473,521 $8,123,800 $25,833,502 $2,157,455
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General Revenues:

Property Taxes Levied for:

Children Services

Board of Mental Retardation

Senior Citizens

General Fund
Sales Tax for:

General Fund

Grants and Entitlements not Restricted to Specific Programs

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year, As Restated (See Note 4)

Net Assets at End of Year



Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
($2,865,156) $0 ($2,865,156)
(2,302,326) 0 (2,302,326)
(7,191,712) 0 (7,191,712)
(479,009) 0 (479,009)
(506,371) 0 (506,371)
(6,745,008) 0 (6,745,008)
1,307,417 0 1,307,417
(597,639) 0 (597,639)
(19,379,804) 0 (19,379,804)
0 21,040 21,040
0 21,040 21,040
(19,379,804) 21,040 (19,358,764)
844,848 0 844,848
4,310,553 0 4,310,553
447,234 0 447,234
3,034,638 0 3,034,638
11,212,937 0 11,212,937
1,600,032 0 1,600,032
356,226 0 356,226
1,299,225 1,660 1,300,885
23,105,693 1,660 23,107,353
3,725,889 22,700 3,748,589
40,827,204 124,651 40,951,855
$44,553,093 $147,351 $44,700,444




Ross County, Ohio

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

December 31, 2009

Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents In Segregated Accounts
Accounts Receivable

Accrued Interest Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable

Interfund Receivable

Property Taxes Receivable

Sales Taxes Receivable

Loans Receivable

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Prepaid Items

Advances to Other Funds

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages Payable
Contracts Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Matured Compensated Absences Payable
Interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue
Unearned Revenue
Advances from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Prepaids
Reserved for Loans
Reserved for Advances
Unreserved:
Undesignated, Reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Funds

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Job Motor Correctional
and Family Vehicle and Law

General Services Gas Tax Enforcement
$912,672 $159,332 $304,106 $354,327
17,435 0 0 36,626
61,740 0 0 109,867
117,410 0 0 0
890,475 863,464 2,130,711 2,300
300,007 65,551 59,370 78,172
3,348,361 0 0 0
3,210,899 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
125,060 47,964 384,706 9,599
118,949 0 0 0
497,862 0 191,811 223,487
$9,600,870 $1,136,311 $3,070,704 $814,378
$173,795 $14,228 $43,207 $196,924
145,256 141,473 41,943 107,860
0 164,833 1,239 7,962

163,746 71,546 31,245 85,335
0 0 0 0
0 8,099 0 0

157,835 214,297 47,371 131,483
2,146,501 0 1,419,758 0
2,980,817 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
5,767,950 614,476 1,584,763 529,564
207,443 12,105 108,438 64,457
118,949 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
497,862 0 191,811 223,487
3,008,666 0 0 0
0 509,730 1,185,692 (3,130)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
3,832,920 521,835 1,485,941 284,814
$9,600,870 $1,136,311 $3,070,704 $814,378
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Board of Other Total
Developmental Economic Governmental Governmental

Disabilities Development Funds Funds
$1,595,884 $69 $3,235,134 $6,561,524
0 0 387,315 441,376
0 0 11,185 182,792
1,633 0 0 119,043
373,470 0 2,974,575 7,234,995
302,355 0 0 805,455
4,750,964 0 1,424,248 9,523,573
0 0 0 3,210,899
0 1,115,000 17,759 1,132,759
4,109 0 16,285 587,723
0 0 0 118,949
976,840 0 0 1,890,000
$8,005,255 $1,115,069 $8,066,501 $31,809,088
$117,128 $0 $152,483 $697,765
104,191 0 57,061 597,784
254,062 0 532,832 960,928
423,847 0 177,200 952,919
0 54,070 7,416 61,486
0 0 0 8,099
107,041 0 246,560 904,587
692,751 1,115,000 1,971,821 7,345,831
4,216,146 0 1,559,188 8,756,151
0 1,115,000 225,000 1,340,000
5,915,166 2,284,070 4,929,561 21,625,550
27,655 0 160,551 580,649
0 0 0 118,949
0 0 9,928 9,928
976,840 0 0 1,890,000
0 0 0 3,008,666
1,085,594 (1,169,001) 3,095,796 4,704,681
0 0 166,191 166,191
0 0 (295,526) (295,526)
2,090,089 (1,169,001) 3,136,940 10,183,538
$8,005,255 $1,115,069 $8,066,501 $31,809,088
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Ross County, Ohio
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to
Net Assets of Governmental Activities
December 31, 2009

Total Governmental Funds Balances $10,183,538

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported in the funds. 40,350,349

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore
are deferred in the funds:

Property Taxes 759,807
Sales Taxes 1,237,315
Intergovernmental Revenue 4,233,709
Proceeds of Loans 1,115,000
Total 7,345,831

Unamortized issuance costs represent deferred charges which do not provide current
financial resources and are therefore not reported in the funds. 124,404

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of insurance to indvidual
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 317,203

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, notes payable and accrued interest payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Bonds Payable (11,070,000)
Loans Payable (560,530)
Premium on Bonds Issued (12,380)
Accrued Interest Payable (50,765)
Capital Leases Payable (130,874)
Compensated Absences Payable (1,943,683)
Total (13,768,232)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $44,553,093

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Ross County, Ohio

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009.

Revenues

Property Taxes

Sales Tax
Intergovernmental
Interest

Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Charges for Services
Rent

Special Assessments
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Human Services

Economic Development and Assistance

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Inception of Capital Lease

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances (Deficits) at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances (Deficits) at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Job Motor Correctional
and Family Vehicle and Law
General Services Gas Tax Enforcement
$3,004,594 $0 $0 $0
11,254,088 0 0 0
1,940,701 8,375,092 4,442,391 0
310,655 0 3,845 0
244,408 0 0 0
109,571 0 48,223 0
1,854,711 490,605 881,751 1,496,262
579,501 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
319,661 214,214 142,404 53,903
19,617,890 9,079,911 5,518,614 1,550,165
4,913,771 0 0 0
3,216,276 0 0 0
1,758,168 0 0 6,896,518
221,702 0 5,686,055 0
517,630 0 0 0
585,262 9,307,389 0 0
191,212 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
53,298 0 0 0
5,282 0 0 0
11,462,601 9,307,389 5,686,055 6,896,518
8,155,289 (227,478) (167,441) (5,346,353)
100,541 0 0 0
25,000 280,235 0 5,738,484
(7,434,886) 0 (180,486) (23,789)
(7,309,345) 280,235 (180,486) 5,714,695
845,944 52,757 (347,927) 368,342
2,986,976 469,078 1,833,868 (83,528)
$3,832,920 $521,835 $1,485,941 $284,814
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Board of Other Total
Developmental Economic Governmental Governmental
Disabilities Development Funds Funds
$4,266,844 $0 $1,279,015 $8,550,453
0 0 0 11,254,088
4,364,293 0 9,324,218 28,446,695
6,348 0 35,378 356,226
0 0 0 244,408
0 0 199,669 357,463
5,718 0 2,135,392 6,864,439
0 0 0 579,501
0 0 24,435 24,435
211,489 0 372,554 1,314,225
8,854,692 0 13,370,661 57,991,933
0 0 1,057,535 5,971,306
0 0 951,193 4,167,469
0 0 1,321,570 9,976,256
0 0 136,316 6,044,073
0 0 0 517,630
8,907,565 0 7,128,614 25,928,830
0 0 476,548 667,760
0 0 2,259,868 2,259,868
0 1,115,000 933,385 2,101,683
0 121,682 532,412 659,376
8,907,565 1,236,682 14,797,441 58,294,251
(52,873) (1,236,682) (1,426,780) (302,318)
0 0 0 100,541
0 82,612 1,657,044 7,783,375
0 (2,424) (141,790) (7,783,375)
0 80,188 1,515,254 100,541
(52,873) (1,156,494) 88,474 (201,777)
2,142,962 (12,507) 3,048,466 10,385,315
$2,090,089 ($1,169,001) $3,136,940 $10,183,538
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Ross County, Ohio
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds ($201,777)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the
current period:
Capital Outlay 3,427,763
Depreciation (4,129,089)
Total (701,326)
Governmental funds only report the disposal of capital assets to the extent proceeds are
received from the sale. In the statement of activities, a gain or loss is reported for each disposal. (19,312)
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues:
Property Taxes 86,820
Sales Taxes (41,150)
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,144,294
Loan Receivable (15,000)
Total 1,174,964
Repayment of bond and note principal and capital leases is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 2,101,683
In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, whereas in governmental
funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due. 68,483
Bond issuance costs are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when due, but in
the Statement of Activities these costs are accrued as deferred charges. (7,571)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of the current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmentl funds. These
activities consist of:
Compensated Absences 242,545
Premium on Bonds Issued 825
Capital Leases Traded In 6,075
Total 249,445
Other financing sources in the governmental funds that increase long-term liabilities in the Statement
of Net Assets are not reported as revenues in the Statement of Activities:
Inception of Capital Leases (100,541)
The internal service fund used by management to charge the cost of insurance to individual funds
is not reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities. Governmental expenditures
and the related internal service fund revenue are eliminated. The net revenue (expense) of the
internal service fund is allocated among the activities. 1,161,841

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Property Taxes $3,089,100 $3,089,100 $3,087,012 ($2,088)
Sales Tax 10,686,455 10,884,455 11,035,010 150,555
Intergovernmental 2,070,902 1,943,802 1,979,436 35,634
Interest 155,000 202,000 209,201 7,201
Licenses and Permits 287,700 240,700 244,408 3,708
Fines and Forfeitures 122,000 122,000 116,101 (5,899)
Charges for Services 2,093,718 1,837,196 1,885,535 48,339
Rent 600,000 600,000 624,764 24,764
Other 113,543 366,737 414,724 47,987
Total Revenues 19,218,418 19,285,990 19,596,191 310,201
Expenditures
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive
County Commissioners
Personal Services 276,747 277,768 275,926 1,842
Materials and Supplies 3,800 3,800 3,567 233
Contractual Services 52,733 51,833 47,155 4,678
Capital Outlay 5,000 4,075 3,129 946
Reimbursements 0 153,194 153,194 0
Other 179,007 84,001 72,964 11,037
Total County Commissioners 517,287 574,671 555,935 18,736
County Auditor
Personal Services 495,964 486,990 453,301 33,689
Materials and Supplies 32,864 36,664 36,420 244
Contractual Services 5,345 4,845 2,038 2,807
Capital Outlay 3,305 5,005 3,505 1,500
Other 46,907 47,730 45,762 1,968
Total County Auditor 584,385 581,234 541,026 40,208
County Treasurer
Personal Services 274,693 274,831 273,826 1,005
Materials and Supplies 23,225 23,225 18,561 4,664
Contractual Services 1,868 1,868 1,868 0
Capital Outlay 500 500 202 298
Other 18,720 17,951 17,303 648
Total County Treasurer 319,006 318,375 311,760 6,615
Other Financial Administration
Contractual Services 32,400 42,400 40,524 1,876
Total Other Financial Administration 32,400 42,400 40,524 1,876
continued

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Prosecuting Attorney
Personal Services 690,997 751,319 746,379 4,940
Materials and Supplies 21,908 21,908 21,908 0
Allowances 57,582 57,582 57,582 0
Capital Outlay 6,180 8,920 8,920 0
Other 45,808 43,564 42,745 819
Total Prosecuting Attorney 822,475 883,293 877,534 5,759
Budget Commission
Other 900 900 301 599
Total Budget Commission 900 900 301 599
Bureau of Inspection
Contractual Services 66,000 72,000 71,767 233
Total Bureau of Inspection 66,000 72,000 71,767 233
Planning Commission
Personal Services 284,162 284,549 283,668 881
Materials and Supplies 5,500 5,500 3,859 1,641
Contractural Services 24,678 39,953 34,938 5,015
Other 46,374 46,537 42,426 4,111
Total Planning Commission 360,714 376,539 364,891 11,648
Data Processing Board
Personal Services 71,736 73,884 73,528 356
Materials and Supplies ' 11,000 14,500 12,404 2,096
Contractual Services 41,500 42,500 39,309 3,191
Capital Outlay 1,000 2,500 2,483 17
Other 4,970 3,280 3,211 69
Total Data Processing Board 130,206 136,664 130,935 5,729
Board of Elections
Personal Services 457,224 456,882 450,033 6,849
Materials and Supplies 40,000 40,000 23,387 16,613
Contractual Services 141,000 130,000 120,002 9,998
Capital Outlay 5,000 12,000 10,503 1,497
Other 31,680 34,438 30,802 3,636
Total Board of Elections 674,904 673,320 634,727 38,593
continued

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Buildings and Grounds
Personal Services 520,660 520,246 516,474 3,772
Materials and Supplies 47,630 49,030 44,984 4,046
Contractual Services 69,611 69,611 28,979 40,632
Capital Outlay 83,125 103,125 74,330 28,795
Other 353,026 350,125 333,202 16,923
Total Buildings and Grounds 1,074,052 1,092,137 997,969 94,168
Recorder
Personal Services 294,089 294,217 293,061 1,156
Materials and Supplies 7,244 7,244 6,959 285
Contractual Services 79,977 60,027 59,502 525
Capital Outlay 0 19,950 19,950 0
Other 18,151 17,344 16,247 1,097
Total Recorder 399,461 398,782 395,719 3,063
Ross County Service Center
Materials and Supplies 6,400 12,400 9,000 3,400
Contractual Services 125,389 117,889 78,481 39,408
Other 164,659 163,159 96,133 67,026
Total Ross County Service Center 296,448 293,448 183,614 109,834
Taxes on Property
Levies and Assessments - Taxes 8,700 9,775 9,768 7
Delinquent Tax Advertising 500 701 701 0
Auditor/Treasurer Fees 48,000 71,500 71,030 470
Total Taxes on Property 57,200 81,976 81,499 477
Total General Government - Legislative and Executive 5,335,438 5,525,739 5,188,201 337,538
Judicial
Common Pleas Court - Other :
Personal Services 165,848 165,701 165,434 267
Public Defender 491,715 464,267 450,505 13,762
Attorney Fees 18,000 58,125 31,128 26,997
Juror Fees 55,000 65,000 58,648 6,352
Witness Fees 5,000 5,500 5,010 490
Contractual Services 11,000 26,300 23,321 2,979
Other 9,671 9,141 8,948 193
Total Common Pleas Court - Other 756,234 794,034 742,994 51,040
continued



Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Court of Appeals
Materials and Supplies 3,493 3,493 2,959 534
Capital Outlay 13,322 13,322 8,830 4,492
Other 55,448 55,448 50,355 5,093
Total Court of Appeals 72,263 72,263 62,144 10,119
Common Pleas Court #1
Personal Services 205,157 214,476 212,848 1,628
Materials and Supplies 10,800 9,215 8,250 965
Contractual Services 7,070 7,070 6,272 798
Capital Outlay 2,000 0 0 0
Other 27,939 29,165 25,899 3,266
Total Common Pleas Court #1 252,966 259,926 253,269 6,657
Common Pleas Court #2
Personal Services 230,906 231,827 229,857 1,970
Materials and Supplies 8,000 7,439 6,814 625
Contractual Services 7,425 6,325 5,977 348
Capital Outlay 1,000 461 0 461
Other 21,088 29,949 27,217 2,732
Total Common Pleas Court #2 268,419 276,001 269,865 6,136
Jury Commission
Personal Services 10,670 10,660 8,900 1,760
Materials and Supplies 6,000 6,000 2,716 3,284
Other 1,097 1,065 664 401
Total Jury Commission 17,767 17,725 12,280 5,445
Juvenile Court
Personal Services 730,937 721,964 710,252 11,712
Materials and Supplies 3,463 3,463 3,463 0
Contractual Services 1,510 1,510 1,510 0
Other 55,873 53,690 51,772 1,918
Total Juvenile Court 791,783 780,627 766,997 13,630
Probate Court
Personal Services 399,171 403,790 402,316 1,474
Materials and Supplies 7,400 7,400 7,400 0
Contractual Services 4,300 4,300 3,923 377
Capital Outlay 0 944 944 0
Other 45,400 43,255 41,020 2,235
Total Probate Court 456,271 459,689 455,603 4,086
continued

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Clerk of Courts
Personal Services 404,921 407,712 405,920 1,792
Materials and Supplies 62,485 59,485 58,231 1,254
Contractual Services 18,168 19,918 18,913 1,005
Other 21,993 22,121 21,607 514
Total Clerk of Courts 507,567 509,236 504,671 4,565
Municipal Court
County Share 129,872 129,872 129,872 0
Juror's Fees 4,000 6,000 4,346 1,654
Witness Fees 5,000 6,250 5,850 400
Criminal Prosecution 34,335 34,335 34,335 0
Indigent Defense 7,000 5,000 3,076 1,924
Total Municipal Court 180,207 181,457 177,479 3,978
Law Library
Personal Services 3,592 3,589 3,588 1
Other 241 228 223 5
Total Law Library 3,833 3,817 3,811 6
Total General Government - Judicial 3,307,310 3,354,775 3,249,113 105,662
Public Safety
Adult Probation
Personal Services 249,934 244,251 238,849 5,402
Materials and Supplies 11,311 11,311 8,478 2,833
Contractual Services 2,000 2,000 1,200 800
Capital Outlay 12,051 12,051 9,191 2,860
Other 30,395 29,840 25,620 4,220
Total Adult Probation 305,691 299,453 283,338 16,115
Juvenile Probation
Personal Services 312,292 311,840 311,716 124
Materials and Supplies 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
Contractual Services 18,001 18,001 16,929 1,072
Other 55,490 54,428 53,155 1,273
Total Juvenile Probation 386,783 385,269 382,800 2,469
Juvenile IV-E Program
Personal Services 130,825 135,337 135,337 0
Materials and Supplies 5,178 4,233 2,044 2,189
Contractual Services 100,360 100,670 100,670 0
Capital Outlay 0 245 245 0
Other 61,712 30,302 27,647 2,655
Total Juvenile IV-E Program 298,075 270,787 265,943 4,844
continued

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Detention Home
Other 435,886 435,886 435,886 0
Total Detention Home 435,386 435,886 435,886 0
Coroner
Personal Services 231,058 232,827 231,981 846
Materials and Supplies 1,417 617 394 223
Contractual Services 750 3,400 3,400 0
Capital Outlay 2,000 122 122 0
Other 86,450 85,818 85,531 287
Total Coroner 321,675 322,784 321,428 1,356
Sheriff
Personal Services 83,909 85,450 84,314 1,136
Allowances 30,832 30,832 30,832 0
Other 5,553 5,249 5,138 111
Total Sheriff 120,294 121,531 120,284 1,247
Emergency Management
Grants - Disaster Services 43,194 43,194 43,194 0
Total Emergency Management 43,194 43,194 43,194 0
Dog Warden
Personal Services 150 500 275 225
Total Dog Warden 150 500 275 225
Total Public Safety 1,911,748 1,879,404 1,853,148 26,256
Public Works
Engineer
Personal Services 160,755 160,622 160,289 333
Materials and Supplies 2,500 2,500 2,500 0
Capital Outlay 12,100 12,100 9,550 2,550
Other 10,408 9,920 9,743 177
Total Engineer 185,763 185,142 182,082 3,060
Air Navigation Facilities
Personal Services 29,301 29,271 29,212 59
Contractual Services 13,680 10,180 5,420 4,760
Capital Outlay 5,000 4,000 0 4,000
Other 16,349 20,242 16,856 3,386
Total Air Navigation Facilities 64,830 63,693 51,488 12,205
Total Public Works 250,593 248,835 233,570 15,265
continued

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Variance with

39



Ross County, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Health
Vital Statistics
Registration Fees
Total Vital Statistics

Agriculture
Soil and Water - Grants
Extension Grants
Premiums
Apiary Inspection
Total Agriculture

Other Health
Crippled Children Aid
Total Other Health

Total Health

Human Services

Veteran's Assistance
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Relief Allowances
Capital Outlay
Other

Total Veteran's Assistance

Veteran's Service
Personal Services
Burials
Other

Total Veteran's Service

Total Human Services

Economic Development and Assistance
Regional Planning
Grants - Other

Total Economic Development and Assistance
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
2,000 2,000 1,695 305
2,000 2,000 1,695 305
126,360 126,475 126,475 0
274,320 274,320 274,320 0
3,300 3,300 3,300 0
1,500 1,500 1,369 131
405,480 405,595 405,464 131
107,524 110,471 110,471 0
107,524 110,471 110,471 0
515,004 518,066 517,630 436
109,934 103,430 103,348 82
4,492 4,492 4,492 0
2,090 2,090 2,090 0
238,997 223,997 219,980 4,017
2,000 2,000 2,000 0
10,037 9,323 9,185 138
367,550 345,332 341,095 4,237
172,114 174,553 173,924 629
18,000 19,020 19,020 0
85,147 103,017 102,853 164
275,261 296,590 295,797 793
642,811 641,922 636,892 5,030
35,000 35,000 33,212 1,788
201,640 201,640 158,000 43,640
236,640 236,640 191,212 45,428
12,199,544 12,405,381 11,869,766 535,615
7,018,874 6,880,609 7,726,425 845,816
continued



Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Advances In 0 345,000 358,500 13,500
Advances Out 0 0 (760,462) (760,462)
Transfers In 35,000 35,000 25,000 (10,000)
Transfers Out (7,385,510) (7,467,007) (7,434,886) 32,121
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (7,350,510) (7,087,007) (7,811,848) (724,841)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (331,636) (206,398) (85,423) 120,975
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 194,533 194,533 194,533 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 333,035 333,035 333,035 0
Fund Balance at End of Year $195,932 $321,170 $442,145 $120,975

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Job and Family Services Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $9,279,722 $7,649,722 $7,561,141 ($88,581)
Charges for Services 575,000 485,000 490,605 5,605
Other 148,331 207,331 214,214 6,883
Total Revenues 10,003,053 8,342,053 8,265,960 (76,093)
Expenditures
Current:
Human Services
Personal Services 6,026,675 5,105,270 5,059,051 46,219
Materials and Supplies 121,342 90,032 88,197 1,835
Contractual Services 2,656,285 2,251,387 2,241,629 9,758
Capital Outlay 15,059 15,059 1,340 13,719
Other 1,507,223 1,421,110 1,355,438 65,672
Total Human Services 10,326,584 8,882,858 8,745,655 137,203
Total Expenditures 10,326,584 8,882,858 8,745,655 137,203
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (323,531) (540,805) (479,695) 61,110
Other Financing Sources
Transfers In 307,119 307,119 280,235 (26,884)
Total Other Financing Sources 307,119 307,119 280,235 (26,884)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures (16,412) (233,686) (199,460) 34,226
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 330,274 330,274 330,274 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 16,412 16,412 16,412 0
Fund Balances at End of Year $330,274 $113,000 $147,226 $34,226

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Interest

Fines and Forfeitures
Charges for Services
Other

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Public Works
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other
Total Public Works
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
-Other Financing Uses
Transfers Out
Advances Out

Total Other Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balances at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$4,600,000 $4,600,000 $4,438,322 ($161,678)
10,000 10,000 3,845 6,155)
15,000 15,000 53,283 38,283
0 873,629 881,751 8,122
0 0 142,404 142,404
4,625,000 5,498,629 5,519,605 20,976
1,883,674 1,969,710 1,939,923 29,787
827,588 1,072,928 1,029,273 43,655
1,381,778 2,392,390 2,376,645 15,745
495,225 457,294 433,195 24,099
4,588,265 5,892,322 5,779,036 113,286
4,588,265 5,892,322 5,779,036 113,286
36,735 (393,693) (259,431) 134,262
(230,914) (180,486) (180,486) 0
0 0 (251,181) (251,181)
(230,914) (180,486) (431,667) (251,181)
(194,179) (574,179) (691,098) (116,919)
650,314 650,314 650,314 0
194,179 194,179 194,179 0
$650,314 $270,314 $153,395 (8116,919)
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Ross County, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Correctional and Law Enforcement Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues
Charges for Services
Other

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Public Safety
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other
Total Public Safety
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Advances Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balances at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$1,549,000 $1,576,896 $1,518,533 ($58,363)
67,000 17,000 31,854 14,854
1,616,000 1,593,896 1,550,387 (43,509)
5,641,443 5,528,136 5,489,441 38,695
429,049 399,067 356,311 42,756
261,000 289,500 261,006 28,494
10,000 135,000 133,255 1,745
1,014,258 892,258 811,110 81,148
7,355,750 7,243,961 7,051,123 192,838
7,355,750 7,243,961 7,051,123 192,838
(5,739,750) (5,650,065) (5,500,736) 149,329
5,738,484 5,738,484 5,738,484 0
(35,500) (35,789) (23,789) 12,000
0 0 (292,662) (292,662)
5,702,984 5,702,695 5,422,033 (280,662)
(36,766) 52,630 (78,703) (131,333)
155,849 155,849 155,849 0
37,691 37,691 37,691 0
$156,774 $246,170 $114,837 ($131,333)
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Ross County, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Board of Developmental Disabilities Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues

Property Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest

Charges for Services
Other

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:

Human Services
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other

Total Human Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Uses
Advances Out

Total Other Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues Under
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balances at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$4,397,010 $4,397,010 $4,381,534 ($15,476)
3,598,145 4,218,145 4,305,695 87,550
7,000 7,000 4,715 (2,285)
8,000 8,000 5,718 (2,282)
97,000 227,000 249,233 22,233
8,107,155 8,857,155 8,946,895 89,740
4,440,900 4,617,000 4,560,109 56,891
348,000 246,500 243,202 3,298
3,296,501 3,159,401 3,122,577 36,824
135,000 127,000 126,823 177
703,872 773,372 687,201 86,171
8,924,273 8,923,273 8,739,912 183,361
8,924,273 8,923,273 8,739,912 183,361
(817,118) (66,118) 206,983 273,101
0 0 (1,279,195) (1,279,195)
0 0 (1,279,195) (1,279,195)
(817,118) (66,118) (1,072,212) (1,006,094)
2,324,726 2,324,726 2,324,726 0
207,149 207,149 207,149 0
$1,714,757 $2,465,757 $1,459,663 ($1,006,094)
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Economic Development Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 1,130,000 1,130,000 1,130,000 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 67,800 - 67,800 67,612 188

Total Debt Service 1,197,800 1,197,800 1,197,612 188
Total Expenditures 1,197,800 1,197,800 1,197,612 188
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,197,800) (1,197,800) (1,197,612) 188
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances In 1,115,000 1,115,000 1,115,000 0
Transfers In 82,800 82,800 82,612 (188)
Transfers Out (2,424) (2,424) (2,424) 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,195,376 1,195,376 1,195,188 (188)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Under Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (2,424) (2,424) (2,424) 0
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 2,493 2,493 2,493 0
Fund Balances at End of Year $69 $69 $69 $0

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2009

Assets

Current Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Interfund Receivable

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Contracts Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Interfund Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Claims Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Advances from Other Funds

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Internal Service

Fund Fund
$43,094 $1,411,073
9,646 0
0 649,132
52,740 2,060,205
14,434 0
81,981 0
96,415 0
149,155 2,060,205
1,804 0
0 377,840
0 550,000
0 28,329
0 236,833
1,804 1,193,002
0 550,000
1,804 1,743,002
96,415 0
50,936 317,203
$147,351 $317,203




Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Internal Service
Fund Fund

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $53,554 $7,407,100
Miscellaneous 1,660 151,090
Total Operating Revenues 55,214 7,558,190
Operating Expenses
Refunds 0 3,325
Contractual Services 24,676 3,806,618
Claims 0 2,559,444
Other 2,838 0
Depreciation 5,000 0
Total Operating Expenses 32,514 6,369,387
Operating Income 22,700 1,188,803
Nonoperating Expenses
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 (26,962)
Total Nonoperating Expenses 0 (26,962)
Change in Net Assets 22,700 1,161,841
Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year 124,651 (844,638)
Net Assets at End of Year $147,351 . $317,203

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Ross County, Ohio
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers

Other Cash Receipts

Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Cash Payments for Claims and Judgements
Other Cash Payments

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Advances In
Advances Out

Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on Investments

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
from Operating Activities

Operating Income

Adjustments:
Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Interfund Receivable

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities.:
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Claims Payable
Judgment Payable
Intergovernmental Payable

Net Cash from Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Internal

Fund Service Fund
$52,694 $6,757,968
1,660 151,090
(24,695) (3,428,778)
(15,000) (3,055,236)
(2,838) (3,325)
11,821 421,719
0 1,150,000
0 (200,000)
0 950,000
0 1,367
11,821 1,373,086
31,273 37,987
$43,094 $1,411,073
$22,700 $1,188,803
5,000 0
(860) 0
0 (649,132)
(623) 0
604 0
0 (495,792)
(<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>